TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, May 11, 2016
5:30 PM
Council Chambers

5:30PM CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

NON-PUBLIC SESSION

NH RSA 91-A:3 Il (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or the
disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her,

PUBLIC SESSION WILL BEGIN IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE NON-PUBLIC SESSION
ABOVE.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

7.a. Public: 04/13/2016
TC Minutes 041316-U.pdf

7.b. Public: 04/27/2016
TC Minuies 04272016-U.pdf

7.c. Non-Public: 04/27/2016

AGENDA OVERVIEW

PUBLIC HEARINGS

9.a. Public Hearing for the donations to cover the cost of irrigation/landscape/hardscape material
with labor, signage, and ceremonial bell valued at $20,483.36 for the Hooksett Safety Center
Memorial Park to the Town of Hooksett per RSA 31:95-b lli(a) & RSA 31:95-¢ |l.

051116 Memorial Park, pdf

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

CONSENT AGENDA

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES

NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS

14.a. Don Riley, Moderator

15 MINUTE RECESS

OLD BUSINESS

16.a  Donation of a LifePak 15 Cardiac Monitor/Defibrillator from The New England Heart &
Vascular Institute (CMC Hospital} valued at $28,321.82 to the Hooksett Fire-Rescue Dept. as per
RSA 31.95-e L

042716 TC LIFEPAK DONATION HFD.doc

Cardiac Monitor Donation. pdf

LP Quote  3-2016.pdf

16.b Discussion of Town Meeting Results
NEW BUSINESS

17.a 16-024 Firebird Motel 10 Bell Ave. Hookseit, NH - Law Enforcement
BELL AVE LTR 042716.pdf

17.b  16-025 Other Ways to Govern the Town of Hooksett
Court case refated to forms of government in NH. pdf

17.¢c  16-026 Town Newsletter
5112016 Newsletter Staff Report.pdf

0516.pdf

17.d 16-027 Boston Post Cane Award
5112016 Boston Post Cane Staff Report.pdf

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.




18.

19.

20.

21,

SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

PUBLIC INPUT

NON-PUBLIC SESSION

20.a NHRSA91-A:3 Il (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or
the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her,

20.b  NH RSA 91-A:3 IF {c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.

ADJOURNMENT

Public Input

1.

Two 15-minute Public Input sessions will be allowed during each Council Meeting. Time
will be divided equally among those wishing to speak, however,no person will be allowed
to speak for more than 5 minutes.

No person may address the council more than twice on any issue in any
meeting.Comments must be addressed {o the Chair and must not be personal or
derogatory about any other person.

Any questions must be directly related to the topic being discussed and must be
addressed to the Chair only, who after consultation with Council and Town Administrator,
will determine if the question can be answered at that time. Questions cannot be directed
to an individual Councilor and must not be personal in nature. Issues raised during Public
Input, which cannot be rescolved or answered at that time, or which require additional
discussion or research, will be noted by the Town Administrator who will be responsihle
for researching and responding to the comment directly during normai work hours or by
bringing to the Council for discussion at a subsequent meeting. The Chair reserves the
right to end guestioning if the questions depart from clarification to deliberation.

Council members may request a comment be added to New Business at a subsequent
meeting.

No one may speak during Public Input except the person acknowledged by the Chair.
Direct questions or comments from the audience are not permitted during Public input.

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.




QO ~I b B e N e

TOWN COUNCIL -- UNOFFICIAL
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, April 13, 2016
6:30 PM
Councit Chambers

1. CALL TO ORDER
Chairman James Sullivan called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.
2, ROLL CALL #2 .

In attendance: Chairman Sullivan, Councilors Robert Duhaime, Marc Miville, David Ross,
James Levesque, Adam Jennings, Nancy Comai, Donald Winterton, and Tim Tsantoulis

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
4. SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS
4.a Police Department - swearing in of new Patrol Officer

Chairman Sullivan introduced Captain Daigle who came forward to swear in Eric Perreault as
Hooksett's newest Patrol Officer. Captain Daigle said he was proud to swear in Officer
Perreauit in front of his Hookseft Police Department colleagues, his family and friends.
Officer Perreault was raised in Lowell, MA and went to Salem High School. He took some
business management courses at Keene State College and is an exceptional baseball player
having been a free agent for the Arizona Diamondbacks. From there he served as an
Account Manager for MicroTech. Mr. Perreault joined the Captain and took his oath of office.
His mother came forward and proudly pinned his badge to the applause of friends, family,
and colleagues. On behalf of the Council, Chairman Sullivan offered congratulations to
Officer Perreault and advised him to “stay safe”.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

5.a Public; 03/23/2016
TC Minutes 03.23.16-U.docx

Councilor Duhaime moved, second by Councilor Jennings, to approve the March 23, 2016
Town Council meeting minutes as amended. Motion passed 8-0-1 (Councilor Comai
abstained).

5.b Public: 04/02/2016
TC MINUTES 040216-U.pdf

Councitor Jennings moved, second by Councilor Duhaime, fo approve the April 2, 2016 Town
Council special meeting as presented. Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.

6. AGENDA OVERVIEW

TC Minutes 041316-U 1




51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
39
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
&3
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
%4
95
96
97
98
99

7. MARTINS FERRY ROAD - PUBLIC INPUT (30 MINUTES)

7.a Extended public input for the Town to provide the public with information on Martins
Ferry Road for proposed sidewalks and traffic calming measures and for the Town to
receive public comments on this proposal.

2016 Roadway Construction Project april 13 2018 town council mtg.pdf

Town Engineer, Jim Donison, followed up on the Martins Ferry Road construction project that
was discussed at the Council's last meeting. Mr. Donison noted on overhead slides where
two stakes and bump-outs would be located. Trees will be cut and the sidewalk wili be
immediately adjacent to the curb. If a property owner wants trees down, "we’ll meet with
individual property owners”. Bump-outs are a slight indent in the road and will be marked so
that snow plow drivers see them. It was mentioned again that fire and police do not like
speed tables. Mailboxes were discussed previously, as well. Mr. Donison had a slide placing
the mailboxes sideways at the edge of the sidewalk which would work and not require
homeowners to cross the street to get their mail. Mr. Donison will make sure this is
acceptable to the Postmaster. Councilor Ross asked about the costs of removing the
mailboxes that exist and reinstalling new ones. Councilor Ross asked if the town was paying
for the material, labor, etc. He also pointed out that one or two mailboxes are on granite
posts. Mr. Donison said the granite posts will have to be replaced. He said, “people need to
know who is paying for it and where it's going to be”.

In response to David Smith about the width of driveways, Mr. Donison said the roadway
would go from 22 to 20 feet. Mr. Smith said he's interested in safety, slower speeds, and
peaceful living and proposed four bump-outs. Mr. Smith asked whether or not the four part-
time officers had been approved. Dr. Shankle said the Council approved four part-time
officers and will be filled if the budget is passed. Two other officers are on a separate
warrant article. Mr. Smith said he’s looking to get the police officers in the area; limiting the
speed hasn't helped.

Michael Stachura of Benton Road pointed out on the slide the area of concern to him. His
house is at the corner and asked how speeding fraffic can be slowed going down Benton
Road. He said it is a dangerous intersection and asked if it wouldn't be better to put a stop
sign at that corner on Martins Ferry. Mr. Donison said they tried to space out the bump-outs
evenly along Martins Ferry Road but questioned whether that would prevent drivers from
whipping around the corner. Itis an enforcement issue. Dr. Shankle suggested turning it into
a T intersection. Mr. Donison thought that is a possibility. Mr. Stachura was not sure that
would help. Mr. Stachura said Benton Road was supposed to have been widened but it was
never done. He said people cannot get out that road onto Martins Ferry Road and a three
way stop sign may be the ideal solution.

Chairman Sullivan asked if it couldn’t be brought back to a T rather than a Y intersection. Mr.
Donison said that is something the Safety Committee tock a look at. Three way stops are not
preferred for speed control. Mr. Donison said he’ll take a look at the area again. Councilor
Winterton said he appreciated Mr. Stachura's input and asked him to get in touch with
neighbors to support the Council’s budget that includes funding for four part-time officers.

Matt Harding of 32 Martins Ferry Road said he supports the proposal and appreciates the
effort. He said he feels strongly about making the road “feel more like a community”. He said

TC Minutes 041316-U 2




100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126

127
128
129
130

131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149

last Friday he went to see the baseball game at SNHU with his daughter who wanted to walk
the ¥ mile trip to the field, so his daughter supports having a sidewalk.

Councilor Ross suggested placing a concrete cone in the middle of the road, or crosswalk.
He said UNH uses them and “you can't cut corners”. He said that occurs on Sherwood Drive
as well. Chairman Sullivan said they would have to be removed during the winter months.
Councilor Duhaime said for now calming measures should be installed and marked for review
in a year from now to see how it's working.

Mr. Donison said there is a pedestrian bridge across the brook. He spoke with SNHU about
the cost of the superstructure and indicated that the town would pay for abutment costs. A
representative from SNHU, Mr. Maldini, said the matter is under advisement and the school
will see what they can do. He said it's at the leadership desk and “we are looking at it". Dr.
Shankle asked if students would use sidewalks. Mr. Maldini said “probably” but they haven’
done a study. In response to a Council member, Mr. Donison said there is no cost to Sewer.

Councilor Miville said it has been a long process and thanked everyone for providing a lot of
input. He is in support of the plan and feels it “accomplishes what we need”. Mr. Donison
said he expects to advertise the bid in mid-May and award it by mid-June. Work should
begin in July and will last three months.

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS
9. CONSENT AGENDA

9.a Donation of Approximate total dollar amount for materials $215.00 and Donation of
labor will not exceed monetary value requiring a public hearing for the Hooksett Fire

Station 1 Cub Scout Garden Project. This is in compliance with RSA 31:95-e Il
Station 1 Cub Scout Garden project - Staff report. pdf

Station 1 garden picture. JPG

10. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
Dr. Shankle reported the following:

o Audit was received. There were no major issues.

¢ Received email from Councilor Levesgue about a resident’s interest in a guardrail.
Director of Public Works, Diane Boyce, and Deputy, Jim Donison, looked at it and didn't

recommend it; guardrails are generally placed so “you don’t go down an embankment”.

Attended a two day workshop on economic development and land use matters.

Planning Board toured SNHU’s new facilities. It was interesting.

Conservation Commission worked through impact fees issues.

Bid opening for Lilac Bridge reclamation. Got one bid ~ interested in sections of the
Bridge.

Donna Fitzpatrick provided a brief update on the Wellness Program. Ms. Fitzpatrick
reminded Council members that Harvard Pilgrim offers quarterly incentives and spoke to
the importance of learning more about being a consumer. Active employees can avail
themselves of the options in services which drives down costs. In May, the town will

TC Minutes 041316-U 3




150 faunch a major water hydration challenge. Participation for the whole month of May

151 provides a $75 incentive check.

152

153 Chairman Sullivan said there was a satisfactory conclusion to the Benton Road property.
154 Administrator Shankle said the work is not quite finished. The front yard is a mud hole.
155 Work continues on the property. In response to Councilor Levesque, Chairman Sullivan
156 said they are doing the work with the court’s permission.

157

158 11, PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES

159

160 12. NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

161

162 13. SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS

163

164 13.a Planning Board

165

166  Scoftt Petty, Denise Craft, and Richard Marshall, members and Chair of the Planning Board
167 came forward to provide an annual update of the Planning Board's activities. Mr. Marshall
168 said the Planning Board had been very active over the past year to include zoning
169 amendments to be presented to voters in May, raising chickens, solar energy systems and
170  SNHU's proposed development who are working on a Master Plan for campus. Since
171 January 1 four site applications have been received in comparison to last year's one site plan
172 application.

173

174  They are beginning work on updating the Master Plan which hasn’t been done since 2004. It
175 has been slow going with the loss of staff but they have contracted with Southern NH
176 Planning Commission to assist with Master Plan. Funds should be sufficient for technical
177  assistance as long as not sidetracked. Mr. Marshall said the development of the Master Plan
178 is under the purview of the Planning Board in accord with statute. Councilor Comai asked
179  about attendance at their meetings. Mr. Marshall said attendance has been very good; it's
180  always been good because volunteers take it seriously and they have alternates to replace
181  full members when absent. In response to Councilor Miville, Mr, Marshall said appeals are
182  made directly to the Supreme Court. If new information is provided on a case, it can be
183 appealed to the Board.

184

i85  Councilor Duhaime asked who makes sure the Master Plan gets done. Mr. Marshall said the
I8¢ Board sets goals and objectives. To accomplish those goals, zoning changes must be
187 developed and that continues all the time. Mr. Marshall said they are continually updating the
188 plan and are always cognizant of the Master Plan which gets updated every ten years and
189 gets amended from time-to-time. Currently, several chapters really need to be updated.
190 Sometimes the Board just re-affirms particular sections. Councilor Levesque asked if
191 proposed zoning changes are made available to the public. Mr. Marshall said they are
192  posted. Chairman Sullivan mentioned a new TIF plan. Mr. Marshall said he would love to
193  discuss it if somebody would come to the Planning Board to discuss it. Councilor Comai
194  suggested clarification on who stewards the Master Plan. Mr. Marshall said the Planning
195 Board and the Planning Department staff is responsible for that. Mr. Marshall said the
196  amendments are recorded by date. He's done four Master Plans.

197

198 14. 15 MINUTE RECESS

199

TC Minutes 041316-1 4




200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248

249

16. OLD BUSINESS
15.a Richard Fitz Proposal for Selective Timber Cut

Dr. Shankle said that Richard Fitz made a proposal regarding cutting timber on town land.
The Council asked Dr. Shankle to do due diligence and bring back information so the Council
could make a decision. According to the state who both assess timber and keep an eye on
timber cuts, it seems the prices Mr. Fitz is proposing paying are reasonable. The only issue
that was raised was whether the Town’s property could be clearly delineated. Dr. Shankle
asked the Town Engineer to work with Mr. Fitz on the entrance to the area and the bounds.

Pending the resolution of the expressed concerns, Councilor Winterton moved, second by
Councilor Jennings, fo authorize the Town Administrator to sign the Timber Conlract with
R.A. Fitz & Son, Inc. provided all boundaries of the town-owned property, Map 23, Lot 14, are
agreed fo and salisfied. Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.

Jim Donison said that the parcel is 33 acres and Mr. Fitz will survey the parcel before the cut
is actually done. Councilor Comai said Mr. Fitz was supposed fo talk to abutters. Mr.
Donison said Mr. Fitz has contacted everyone. Councilor Comai wanted assurance that the
town would not be liable for any damages. Mr. Donison said that had to be addressed in the
agreements reached. Town Administrator Shankle said "he may not get permission to go in”.
Councilor Levesque suggested keeping the contractor to the letter of the agreement.

Councilor Winterton recalled that Mr. Fitz is doing a property in the area, not contiguous, and
if trees don't come off the property now, “we’ll never have access to that property again”. He
continued saying that the parcel is land locked and no one will go in again. A forest will re-
grow. Councilor Winterton stands by his motion authorizing the Town Administrator to sign a
contract with the caveat as included in the motion. Councilor Comai said it should be a clear
cut. Councilor Duhaime said every county has its own forester. Once Mr. Donison knows the
boundary, the forester will be happy to take a look. Councilor Ross said it's town property
and a clear cut is generally not a good thing to do; and it's ugly too. It's a selective cut
because it's siill a forest; not conservation property. Councilor Winterton said no one
advocated a clear cut, someone asked about a clear cut. Councilor Levesque said selective
cut is the thing to do. There can be another harvest in 50-75 years from now, and sometimes
hard wood comes back better. Chairman Sullivan said the concerns will be addressed. The
motion passed unanimously, 9-0.

15.b Deliberative Session 04/02/16

Chairman Sullivan welcomed any comments on how the deliberative session went. He
thought it went very well. Councilor Winterton said it is important to recognize that there were
eight citizens who attended that were not on any committee and “that’s very troubling”. He
said warrant articles changing the dates of the deliberative session and town meeting and
that is a good thing. He said that Hooksett has 9,865 voters. Under SB 2, “we could be
subject by governance motivated by a minority”. He said weeks of hard work gets changed
by a very vocal minority.

Councilor Winterton said SB 2 today is a "“troubling way to govern ourselves”. He said in
2016 we are asking citizens of Hooksett to go to a deliberative session or ballot box seven
times this year. Motivated citizens will go seven times a year — we have eight of them. Only

TC Minutes 041316-U 5




250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265

260
267
268

269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
289

eight citizens have perfect attendance. Councilor Winterton suggested that the Council direct
the Town Administrator to confer with counsel on other ways Hooksett could govern itself and
provide descriptions of various forms of government and ask the citizens if that is the way
they want to govern. Chairman Sullivan asked that the matter be included on next month’s
Council meeting agenda. Councilor Ross suggested letting the people weigh in on the
warrant article first. Councilor Winterton said he was not proposing anything. SB 2 is not
serving the people of Hooksett. Chairman Sullivan said it could be voter apathy. Councilor
Miville said at times when there is no controversy, there's no reason to show up. “We need
to get out the vote”. Election will be held on May 10" and the word needs to get out.
Chairman Sullivan said that other than lack of attendance, the explanations were clear and
answers were provided and "we continue to improve”. Councilor Levesque said the Voters
Guide doesn’t have zoning amendments in it. Dr. Shankle thought they were included.

16. NEW BUSINESS
16.a 16-015 Contract Award for Architectural Services for the Hooksett Safety Complex

- 2016 Pglice Station Renovations RFF#16-02
Staff Report April 13 2016 Town Council RFP 16-02 Police Station.pdf

Town Engineer, Jim Donison, on behalf of Chief Bartlett, reviewed the results of the RFP for
architectural services in renovating the town’s Safety Complex. The scope of work will
include relocating the dispatch room, improving a number of rooms, and the like. Four
interested firms submitted their proposal. The Selection Committee interviewed three of
them. The fourth firm was not interviewed because their quote of $97,500 was substantially
higher than the other three firms. The Selection Committee chose SMP Architecture because
they provided the most detailed information though their price of $54,125 was not the lowest.
Mr. Donison also stated that SMP Architecture has done work for the town previously.

Councilor Comai moved, second by Councilor Jennings, to award RFP #16-02 Proposal for
Architectural Services for the Town’s Safety Complex to SMP Architecture for the amount of
$54,125. It was noted that funding for the project will come from the already approved Police
Impact Fee account approved by the Town Council on October 28, 2015.

Councilor Ross was concerned about what was not included in the scope of services and that
more meetings, if necessary, would add to the cost. Mr. Donison said specifics were
included and the Police Chief is comfortable with the five meetings proposed to include
critical milestone meetings, and will supply drawings. Dr. Shankle said SMP Architecture is
the firm that did Station 1. Councilor Ross said the comparison of the two buildings is stark.
Councilor Tsantoulis recalled the Chief talking about small scope items; not a total
rehabilitation and asked whether the quoted price was fair compensation. Mr. Donison said
“ves". Councilor Miville asked what the difference was between SMP and the next lowest
price quote of $42,800 provided by Dennis Mires, P.A, Mr. Donison said the proposal
submitted by SMP was very detailed. They provided very detailed sketches in comparison to
the others who were very generic.

Roif Call # 3 was called: Comai-yes, Ross-yes, Jennings-yes, Miville-yes, Duhaime-yes,

Tsantoulis-yes, Levesque-yes, Winterton-yes, Sullivan-yes. Motion passed unanimously, 9-
0.

TC Minutes 041316-U o




300
301

302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311

312
313
314
315
316
317
318

319
320
321

322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334

335
336
337

338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345

346
347
348
349
350

351

SMP Architecture proposal RFP 16-02 Police Station Improvements.pdf

16.b 16-016 Contract Award for Fire Alarm System for Hooksett Old Town Hall
Staff Report - Fire Alarm system Old town Hall.pdf

Councilor Ross recused himself on this matter. Dr. Shankle mentioned that normally if an
award is for less than $15,000 it would not come before the Council.

Councilor Comai moved, second by Councilor Duhaime, to concur with DPW's
recommendation and award the contract to D.P. Ross Home Electronics at a cost of $9,700.
Roll Call #4: Jenning-yes, Levesque-yes, Ross-abstained, Duhaime -yes, Mivifle-yes,
Winterton-yes, Tsanloulis-yes, Comai-yes, Sullivan-no. Motion passed, 8-0-1.

D. Ross bid - Old Town Hall.pdf

Hampshire Fire Bid Old Town Hall.pdf

Tyeo Bid Old Town Hall pdf

16.c  18-017 Town Administrator Annual Performance Review Process
Staff Report TA Eval 041316.pdf

Town Administrator Shankle removed himself from the discussion. Councilors were asked to
approve the timeline and process for the Town Administrator's annual evaluation for period
7/1/15 — 6/30/16. Chairman Sullivan said he was comfortable with the format. Dr. Shankle
will provide his self-evaluation on May 11" instead of April 27®. Councilor Winterton said he
is a firm believer in self evaluation and he was comfortable with the accelerated timeline.
May 25™ will now be May 11™. Ms. Fitzpatrick said that it use to be done closer to May or the
end of June. Chairman Sullivan said that in June, the Council will give the Town
Administrator established goals. Donna Fitzpatrick said she will send out an updated
schedule. Councilor Jennings asked if there were any recommendations on the form itself.
Ms. Fitzpatrick said that goals for this round included more technology. Councilor Miville
asked if there was an area for suggestions for improvement. Ms. Fitzpatrick said that under
each item there is a section for general comments.

16.d 16-018 Old Home Day Town Council Booth - 09/17/16
STAFF REPORT 2016 OLD HOME DAY TC BOOTH.pdf

Annually the Council has hosted an Old Home Day Town Council booth. Additionally, to
promote town collaboration the Conservation Commission and Heritage Commission have
booths on either side to share their respective information. Councilors volunteer their time to
work the booths. Councilor Winterton suggested filling in the volunteer sign-in sheet after the
election since the Council composition may change.

Councifor Jennings moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to approve the 2016 Old Home
Day Town Council booth as presented. Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.

2016 Vendor Registration.pdf

2016 OHD vendor guidelines.pdf

16.e 16-019 Heritage Day Proclamation 05/21/2016
TC Minutes 041316-U 7

10




352
353

354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401

Heritage Day Proclamation 2016.doc

Chairman Sullivan read a Preservation Month 2016, Proclamation by Hooksett Town Council
proclaiming May as National Preservation Month in Hooksett and May 21, 2016 as Hooksett
Heritage Day.

Councilor Levesque moved, second by Councilor Jennings, to accept the proclamation as
presented. Molion passed unanimously, 9-0.

17. SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

Councilor Tsantoulis said the Assessors Committee met tonight and there is nothing out of
the ordinary to report.

Councilors Jennings, Duhaime, Comai, and Miville had no report.

Chairman Sullivan reported on the Conservation Commission. He said during demolition of
the old town hall, they discovered items to be preserved -- the old arch of the window of the
front door; spiral stair case, the shade. The coating is sfill in good shape. Commission is
almost ready to go out for bids for the replacement of the windows.

Councilor Winterton said the Sewer Commission met last Monday. As mentioned by Dr.
Shankle earlier, the Planning Board met at SNHU. In attendance were five or six
representatives of SNHU. They've had a lot of new hires. It was a really productive
discussion and their growth is rapid; tearing down two buildings. Their proposal to the town
will be a $36 million dorm to house students that currently live in Manchester. That will be
taxable property for Hooksett. They are also building the Gustafson Welcome Center and
1500 seat soccer facility and field. They need to provide the Planning Board with more
information. It was a very positive meeting. Councilor Winterton suggested Councilor take
time to go through and around the property and see the spectacular growth. New buildings
are all "green”.

Councilor Ross said they came to the Conservation Commission with preliminary plans for
the new soccer field. He lives on Sherwood Drive and he can see the end of the tree line.
There is noise pollution and music at the softball field. He hopes planning will address some
of these issues — noise and traffic are a problem. He also found drainage arrangements a bit
short. Councilor Ross said their may be extra money for trail projects. He also commented
on the elderly exemption qualifications, i.e., the asset level/income level are out of whack and
the veterans tax credit totals $500.

Councilor Levesque said the Zoning Board met last night. On Harmony Place, they passed
variance to change from 63 units to 76 units which passed.

18. PUBLIC INPUT
19. NON-PUBLIC SESSION

NH RSA 91-A:3 1l {c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.

TC Minutes 041316-U 8

11




402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418

419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442

J. Sullivan motioned to enter non-public session at 9:30pm. Seconded by D.
Winterton.

Roll Call

T. Tsantoulis — yes
D. Ross — yes

R. Duhaime — yes
A. Jennings — yes
J. Levesque — yes
D. Winterton — yes
M. Miville — yes

N. Comai - yes

J. Sullivan - yes
Vote unanimously in favor.

J. Sullivan motioned to exit non-public at 9:37pm. Seconded by D. Winterton.
Vote unanimously in favor.

J. Sullivan motioned to seal the non-public minutes of 04/13/16. Seconded by T.
Tsantoulis.
Vote unanimously in favor.

20. ADJOURNMENT

Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to adjourn the public session of the
meeting at 9:38 p.m. Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.

Note: The town website may have attachments to these Town Council minutes for
documents referred to in the minutes, reading file material, and/or ancillary documents that
the Town Council Chair has signed as agent to expend as a result of the Council’s prior
approval of the documents.

Respectfully submitted,

Suzanne Beauchesne
Recording Clerk

TC Minutes 041316-U

12




(=Y R R N S O TR W

13

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES -- UNOFFICIAL
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, April 27, 2016
6:30 PM
Council Chambers

1. CALL TO ORDER
Chairman James Sullivan called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.
2. ROLL CALL #

in aftendance: Chairman Sullivan, Councilors Robert Duhaime, Marc Miville, David Ross,
James Levesque, Adam Jennings, Nancy Comai, and Tim Tsantoulis

Absent — Councilor Donald Winterton and Town Administrator, Dr. Dean Shankle.
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
4. SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

4.a Swearing-in Ceremony for new Hooksett Fire Chief James Burkush

Chairman Sullivan thanked Assistant Chief, Dean Jore, and read through Chief James
Burkush's biography. He welcomed family and friends in attendance, and recognized
Councilor Comai. Assistant Chief Jore and Deputy Chief Michael Hoisington joined Chief
Burkush and Councilor Comai who read the Firefighters Pledge and administered the oath of
office to Chief Burkush.

Deputy Chief Hoisington asked Chief Burkush to be generous with passing on his knowledge
and said that every Manchester firefighter he spoke to said “you've got a good one” and
“you're going to like this guy”. Both he and Assistant Chief Jore said they looked forward to
working for and with Chief Burkush. Both offered congratulations and a “welcome aboard”.
Chief Burkush's son, a firefighter himself in Manchester, pinned the badge on him. Father
and son exchanged a hug and the Chief said to his son “it was not that long ago, | was
pinning this badge on you". Chief Burkush thanked the Council and the administrative staff.
He introduced his family including his 80-year-old Mom, his wife, Anne, of 34 years, his two
children, son TJ, and daughter, Kendall, his son-in-law Travis Mannon, and Manchester
Assistant Fire Chief, Dan Goonan and his wife. He recognized Al Murray who taught him to
dive way back. He said he met the Fire Department staff last week and looks forward to
working with them, and to this new endeavor. He said he hopes to be able to “add something
to this fine group here”. Chairman Sullivan welcomed Chief Burkush and wished him well
during his career in Hooksett. The Chairman also offered thanks to all the firefighters in
attendance for their good work.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

5.a Public: 04/13/2016
TC Minutes 04.13.16-U.pdf

TC Minutes 042716-U 1




Lo
—

Chairman Sullivan moved to table the public minutes of the April 13", 2016 Council meeting.
Second by Councilor Comai and passed unanimously, 8-0.

5.b  Non-Public: 04/13/2016

Councilor Duhaime moved, second by Councilor Comai, to approve the non-public minutes of
the Councif meeting of April 13, 2016. Motion passed unanimously, 8-0.

6. AGENDA OVERVIEW

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS

7.a Public hearing for a donation of a LifePak 15 Cardiac Monitor/Defibrillator from The New
England Heart & Vascular Institute (CMC Hospital) valued at $28,321.82 to the Hooksett Fire-
Rescue Dept. as per RSA 31:95-e il

042716 TC LIFEPAK DONATION HFD.doc

Cardiac Monitor Donation.pdf

LP Quote 3-2016.pdf

At 6:48 p.m. Chairman Sullivan read the meeting notice and opened the public hearing to
accept a donation of a LifePak 15 Cardiac Monitor/Defibrillator from the New England Heart &
Vascular Institute (CMC Hospital) valued at $28,321.82 to the Hooksett Fire-Rescue
Department per RSA 31:95-¢e, |l

Acting Fire Chief Dean Jore along with Firefighter/EMT-Paramedic Joe Stalker came forward.
Chief Jore said that Firefighter Stalker served as the technical expert on the project. He
originated the idea and wrote the grant request. Pictures of the equipment were handed out.
FF Stalker said the LifePak is the newest in the field today and transmits cardiac rhythms. FF
Stalker said the current equipment will be obsolete by September 2016 and Physio-Control
will no fonger service these monitors, nor will they produce any products or parts for them.
FF Stalker said the town transports to three hospitals — Concord, Catholic Medical Center
(CMC), and the Elliot. FF Stalker said the equipment allows for advanced care that can start
more quickly from the field to the cat fab. Councilor Miville said it “looks heavy”. FF Stalker
said its got a shoulder strap and stays in the ambulance. In response to Councilor Duhaime
who asked about the cost of maintenance, FF Stalker said they have a service contract
where they come in every year and do a systems check. The contract is worth its weight in

goid.

Councilor Levesque said as a patient of CMC and a survivor, he said they hook you up to this
monitor; it's fantastic and great for the town. FF Stalker said they bring the equipment right
into the house depending on symptoms and get on as soon as possible.

Chief Jore mentioned that another feature of the equipment is that it records the time
medication is administered and when certain procedures are done. FF Stalker said they
have the ability to select what is transmitted to the hospital; i.e., cardiac rymthm, vital signs.
FF Stalker said one machine has been traded in; they hope to trade the other two. The Chief
mentioned that the other machines are getting near the end of their serviceable life.

- Councilor Miville asked if the "weakest one” gets replaced first. FF Stalker said they are all

weak. Councilor Ross thanked CMC and said he locks forward to having the modern
technology. He also urged staff to “keep up the good work and ask again [for grant funds]".
Councilor Levesque asked if CMC had informed us of the grant or did the department pursue

TC Minutes 042716-U - 2




103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153

P
e

it. FF Stalker said in 2013 he had heard that the philanthropic department had done this sort
of grant. At the time, Hooksett was in need of a chest compression device. Fast forward to
2015, the department figured they'd try the same avenue and lucked out again. Michael
Kelley from CMC came forward. Chairman Sullivan thanked him and CMC for their generous
donation. Mr. Kelley said it is CMC's pleasure to donate the device to area fire departments
and other organizations in need of this and other life saving equipment. Chairman Sullivan
said the donation would be formally accepted at the Council's next meeting.

8. CONSENT AGENDA

8.a Donation of a circa 1900 black and silver parlor stove from Bob Schroeder valued under
$5,000 fo the Hooksett Heritage Commission for eventual use at the old town hall.
Stove Donation 042716.pdf

Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Miville, to accept a donation fo the Hooksett
Heritage Commission of a silver parfor stove from Bob Schroeder valued under $5,000.
Motion passed unanimously.

8.b Landscape surety release in the amount of $36,762.62 to PSNH/Eversource (off Legends
Drive)
Staff Report - PSNH landscape release.pdf

Councilor Jennings moved, second by Councifor Comai, to approve a landscape surely
release in the amount of $36,762.62 to PSNH/Eversource. Motion passed, 7-0-1 (Councitor
Tsantoulis abstained).

8.c Landscape surety release in the amount of $10,500.00 to Manco, LLC (Dunkin Donuts -

Benton Road)
Staff Report - Dunkin Donuts Landscape Surety Release..pdf

Councifor Duhaime moved, second by Councilor Jennings, to approve a landscape surety
release in the amount of $10,500 fo Manco, LLC. Motion passed unanimously, 8-0.

9. TOWN ADNINISTRATOR'S REPORT

In Dr. Shankle's absence, Christine Soucie, Finance Director, indicated the Hooksettites
invited one Council member to attend and say a few words at an event to be held on
Thursday, May 19" at the Derryfield Country Club. Chairman Sullivan said they will make
arrangements to have someone attend. Director Soucie then reported that NH Motor
Speedway has offered Council members a 20 percent discount at two events to be held on
July 17" and September 25", There is no conflict and no action is required by the Council.

10. PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES

Ronald Latouche of Bell Avenue came forward and presented a petition letter regarding
ongoing activity at the Firebird Motel. Mr. Latouche read the petition letter which is attached

to these minutes.

Chairman Sullivan said the Chief has kept him posted on what’s going on at the motel. He is
aware of the concern and asked that Town Administrator Shankle ask the Police Chief to
come in at the Council's next meeting to discuss plans to address citizens’ concerns. Donna

TC Minutes 042716-U 3




154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203

[s0]
—

Fitzgerald mentioned that the Chief was out at training. The issue will be placed on the May
11" meeting agenda. Councilor Mivile asked what course of action Mr. Latouche is
proposing. Mr. Latouche said that he and his neighbors would like the motel shut down;
there is prostitution, murder, and stabbings there. Recently, syringes were picked up and
now people are parking at the Fairfield and walking to the Firebird. He said all they care
about is taking in cash. Chairman Sullivan said “we’ll find out what else can be done to
alleviate the situation”.

11. NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS
12, SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS
12.a Don Riley, Moderator

Town Moderator, Don Riley, on behalf of the Board of Elections thanked the Council for their
tremendous support over the last five years. He said that he and his team of volunteers have
"raised the bar’ and everyone should be thanked for what they do. He suggested maintaining
the Council representative to the Board of Elections, currently held by Councilor Ross. The
town election will be held on May 10™, and Mr. Riley encouraged Council members to sign up
to volunteer on Election Day except those on the ballot. Mr. Riley said he'll need three
Council members to be available at the end of the day to sign the seal for the ballot.

Moderator Riley said there was a Union Leader article recently on an electronic voter
checklist system. He and Scott attended demonstrations that were conducted over the last
several weeks. He said it is exciting technology that will eliminate lines and minimize errors.
The “Poll Pad” tablets allow voters to swipe their driver's licenses on a card reader to check
in. If the information that comes up is correct (home address, polling location), the voter can
sign his or her name on the tablet, which the poll worker then matches fo signatures already
on file with election officials. The tablet then prints out a slip that can be given to election
workers in exchange for a ballot. Senator Boutin developed an amendment which calls for
pilot programs in September and November. Manchester City Clerk, Matt Normand, is
hoping to get approval of the system as a first step fo have the technology implemented
statewide.

Mr. Riley stated that he and Todd attended the NH Senate’s Public and Municipal Affairs
Commitiee and there seemed to be lots of support for the legislation. If passed by the
Senate, it will need to go back to the House for approval. Three communities in NH could be
participating in the pilot program in September and November — Manchester, Durham, and
Hooksett at no cost to the town. Mr. Riley said that votes can be counted in 15 minutes,
rather than two hours. Councilor Miville asked if ballots still get counted. Mr. Riley said that
the machine counts the ballots. Workers look at ballots for write-ins. Councilor Ross said
“anything getting rid of lines is a great idea”, and asked if a log is maintained. Mr. Riley said
that it was all captured and uploaded to the Cloud; very secure. Mr. Riley said that 10 states
are using this technology. Councilor Miville asked if more volunteers would be required. Mr.
Riley said its likely fewer people will be required. The new technology cost about $1,200 per
Poll Pad, and if all materializes, funding will be an issue.

Chairman Sullivan indicated that the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) will need to be
signed. A final schedule of Councilor participation on election day will be sent to Mr. Riley.

TC Minutes 042716-U 4




204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253

19

13. 15 MINUTE RECESS
14. OLD BUSINESS
15. NEW BUSINESS

15.a 16-020 Quarterly Financial Update for March 2016
Quarterly March 2016.pdf

Finance Director Christine Soucie went over highlights of the third quarter financial report
ending March 31, 2016 as follows:

» total operating budget is 68 percent spent

« total revenue figure shows 78 percent collected which is very comparative to the last
two years

« percent expended is very low for family assistance

« administration has expended close to 84 percent to date; Ms. Soucie expects to come
in below or at budget

« Fire-Rescue’s budget as of March 31% is 69 percent spent, which is slightly lower than
the prior two years and primarily due to vacant positions

» One thing running through each department is turnover, a 30 percent rate

Chairman Sullivan asked what is an average turnover rate and are there concerns about why,
why are people leaving. Director Soucie said the hardest department hit was Public Works
and Fire-Rescue and there are a humber of factors as to why people are leaving. Donna
Fitzpatrick mentioned that her office does exit interviews with all departing employees no
matter why they are leaving. Councilor Tsantoulis said that unemployment is low and more
people feel comfortable leaving jobs but it not unique to municipal employees.

Other highlights include:

e while there were not many snow events this year, those that did occur were on
weekends or holidays so staff had to be paid overtime; hired contractors plow school
parking lots to ease the burden on staff

o $64,781 as of March 31%, has been spent for engineering costs on the Lilac Bridge
which was not budgeted for

o The Recycling and Transfer Division is 62% spent and is keeping pace with prior years
spending; tipping fees are up

Councilor Ross stated that “we need to look at this recycling; we're not saving money”. He
said the town was losing money given the cost of the vehicles, fuel, and maintenance items,
and the vehicles are only three years old. Chairman Sullivan said the matter needed to be
brought back on the agenda. Councilor Ross said he would like specifics from Administrator
Shankle. Councilor Duhaime stated that turnover of staff also takes a toll on equipment.
Chairman Sullivan repeated that the issue should be placed on the agenda and have Dr.
Shankle address the question. Councilor Ross said he would like numbers in a simple format
of the cost per ton to get rid of trash now versus a few years ago. The bottom line, he said, is
how much does it take to get the trash out of town.

TC Minutes 042716-U 5




254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303

20

15.b 16-021 Declare Vacancy - Parks & Recreation Advisory Board
PRAB Vacancy.pdf

Councilor Jennings move, second by Councilor Duhaime, to authorize posting a vacancy for
the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. This vacancy is created by Richard Cote lack of
aftendance and participation on the Advisory Board. Motion passed unanimously, 8-0.

15.¢  16-022 Proclamation - Citizen of the Year 2016
COY 16 Staff Report.pdf
Citizen of the Year Proclamation 2016.dog

The Lions Club has selected Frank Kotowski as the 2016 Hooksett Citizen of the Year. Each
year the Town Council presents a proclamation at the recipient of the Citizen of the Year
ceremony which will be held on May 13" this year at the Puritan. Chairman Suilivan read the
proposed prociamation. A typographical error was pointed out to change "her” to *him” in the
third paragraph.

Councilor Jennings moved, second by Councifor Miville, to authorize the Chair fo present the
Citizen of the Year proclamation as read fo Frank Kotowski at the 2016 Citizen of the Year
dinner and ceremony. Motion passed unanimously, 8-0.

15.d 16-023 Donati & Frasier Tennls Courts for Pickleball Use
Pickle Ball lines in Tennis Courts.pdf

Diane Boyce, Director of the Public Works Department, indicated that presently the town is
leasing the gym during the day to a pickle ball group. Pickle ball has become one of the
fastest growing sports and the group has requested that the town put pickle ball lines in the
tennis courts along with the tennis lines for the courts. The town could place a lighter purple
line in one of the two courts at Donati and on one of the two courts at Fraser Field. Those
courts could then be used by both tennis players and pickle ball players. It seems the Town
of Merrimack had the same issue that caused a conflict with tennis players that created a
need for more tennis courts. Director Boyce said that Dr. Shankle feels the tennis courts are
being regularly used and re-purposing them is inappropriate. Director Boyce has gone by the
courts on several occasions and has found that they are not regularly used. She said she
went by seven times over the weekend and did not find anyone using the courts. A resident
showed Council members the racquet and ball used in the game. Director Boyce is asking
that the Council allow pickle ball lines to be painted on two of the four tennis courts in town at
a cost of $400. Councilor Tsantoulis said that town property should be shared and enjoyed
by all residents. Councilor Jennings said if scheduling becomes an issue, perhaps that may
serve as a good Eagle Scout project.

Councilor Jennings moved, second by Councilor Ross, fo allow two of the four tennis courts
in town to be painted with pickle ball lines. Motion passed unanimously, 7-0 [Councitor
Levesque stepped outside of the meeting room at the time of the vote].

16. SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

Councilors Tsantoulis, Jennings, Duhaime, and Miville has no reports. Councilor Comai said
she will not be on the Council going forward and members may want to consider filling her

TC Minutes 042716-U 6




304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353

9]
[a]

position on the Board of Assessors, Cable Advisory Board, Retention Committee, and Union
Negotiations. Councilor Ross is also on those committees.

Chairman Sullivan said he had nothing to report on the Old Town Hall Committee other than
documentation to go out for bid for windows is on its way. Heritage Commission Day will be
held on May 21, The Chairman will report back to the Council on Guidelines on Monuments

and discussed bid opening for Lilac Bridge.

Councilor Ross said there was no Conservation Commission meeting. He said there were no
surprises for the Old Town Hall Committee; heat detectors were all found operational.

Councilor Miville said town elections will be held May 10". Remind everyone to come out
and vote. Appreciate everyone showing up at McCauley Middle School. Please come vote.

Councilor Levesque said the Transfer Committee met but he was not able to attend. He will
provide information at next meeting.

Councilor Duhaime — Tshirts — Chairman Sullivan said they have a multitude of items: t-shirts,
blankets, maps, all available from the Town Clerk, Town Hall, or Robie’s Store. Proceeds
benefit the Heritage Commission endeavors.

Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to place an ad in the newspaper, at
a cost not to exceed $200, fo “Get Out The Vote” and remind people how important it is to
vote and to post a similar public service announcement at the Library. Motion passed

unanimously, 8-0.

Councilor Miville suggested writing up a press release as well to be included in the Hooksett
Banner and/or the Union Leader. Councilor Jennings asked if other towns held elections in
May. Chairman Sullivan said not many and indicated that hoiding town and school elections
at the same time would help

Chairman Sullivan closed the Public Hearing on LifePak.

17. PUBLIC INPUT

18. NON-PUBLIC SESSION

NH RSA 91-A:3 1l (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or
the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her,

NH RSA 91-A:3 lI (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.

J. Sullivan motioned to enter non-public session at 8:29pm. Seconded by A. Jennings.

Roll Call

R. Duhaime — yes
M. Miville — yes

D. Ross — yes

J. Levesque - yes

TC Minutes 042716-U 7




354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362

363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385

23

A. Jennings — yes
N. Comai — yes

T. Tsantoulis - yes
J. Sullivan — yes

Vote unanimously in favor.

J. Sullivan motioned to exit non-public at 8:58pm. Seconded by J. Levesque.
Vote unanimously in favor.

D. Ross motioned fo seal the non-public minutes of 04/27/16. Seconded by M. Miville.
Vote unanimously in favor.

19. ADJOURNMENT

R. Duhaime motioned to adjourn 04/27/16 public session at 9:00pm. Seconded by D.
Ross. Vote unanimously in favor.

Note: The Town website may have attachments to these Town Council minutes for
documents referred to in the minutes, reading file material, and/or ancillary documents that
the Town Council Chair has signed as agent to expend as a result of the Council's prior
approval of the documents.

Respecfully submitted,

Suzanne Beauchesne
Recording Clerk

TC Minutes 042716-U




24

14 Bell Ave.

Hooksett, NH 03106-1036
Res: 603-669-2674

Cell: 603-396-5168

email: rondens(@comcast.net

April 22,2016

Hooksett Town Council

Hooksett, New Hampshire 03106
Re: Firebird Motel

10 Bell Ave., Hooksett, NH
TO WHOM 1T MAY CONCERN:

We, the undersigned, are abutters and/or neighbors residing and/or working in the area
of the above captioned motel.

Since attending the Neighborhood Watch program in 2015, we have noticed an up-tick/
proliferation of activity in the coming & going of clients at the Firebird. To our dis-like,
there seems to be a lack of “preventive maintenance” on management's part that might
otherwise preclude a number of incidents, now increasing in intensity and frequency.

While the Police Department should be commended for its vigilance in attempting to
keep some measure of safety in & around our neighborhood, and we so appreciate its
untiring efforts, we remain reactive to what is transpiring at that address, rather than
being pro-active in deterring malicious behavior.

We will appreciate an open discussion at the town council regarding steps that can be
initiated to regain our appreciation of living in this section of Hooksett.

Sincerely,
ﬁjj{? 4{2@%7) touch&”
h a.il_a..uluz_) L8 é-z.u_ qn/ﬁdxif)*
/éa“r/namé Reés. Chif éi*nﬁ Cowarsee heasning CTF
»—'z’kué&sz,) / s ///?zt'/".' e L2l et @ﬁ&/ /%‘fr)/éde‘/ﬁ-
LanN B Cadiice Cote. | st Sw«.mr _/-Im Hevisers

.fo ) A 3‘!6.‘1.. A& AL p E P | B2 B\ e NS
4 3 © STrlen Spi v 145 n2fy

Q@M ‘,Zvézzi—; /6 BELL INE, HOOESET
,/%Lu/-— /4 [Bre AJE. PA PRz 0G (ReMICe -

S R 4 Va4




LIFEPAK 15 moniTor/DEFIBRILLATOR

For Emergency Medical Services

)
e,
O
-0
e
)
il
“m
R
63
=
€I
o




MHTOR/DEHBEID: AFoR




T At EEhanding: Datlory fochin il oy
il b ey s less s D sy iy
hots ey D, bl iy Deetia e

exdecnd oater b, f.an

e e edeteas o phie pend g fe

P ety Blactoath
AL b

Hved

NI

fecn foo ooy aeree the CI0F DA 1
o anil ol of e g

W @0 g e L

 LIFEPAK 15 eioisut it

Ibegtaten 435 b i
Lo el :

othiennatoimn £ =
e : : 1233 41

Rt} F X oy :

e

may
-

ety ohiesd

its

it




g

et nonneate e e d i fie
foos By sho b oid ey
fenn e ooy s d P floeed
hand doc e v s o

A0RE|UGHBMAONLCIN S L Myd 3]

¢ 1

LI 2 ' ) ] A R BT T U R T
fhoat e ! R AR RN R I
. *
a3 oz fer bl Lot e o f 1y
. R Yesfeprraf ooy
R wil

LR
FACER
Y nale |
“ N
EAR I LISTAETH Y
gt e Ladvapade PO Basy TC0) pooviers oo o
Pt o : oo B =0 e b ledpr edonid

E e SEE gy, o dend vt
s AHS cpmp e |

The LIFEPAK 15 monitor/
defibrillator at a glance.

i b cendies o
cearMndotses L
St iy vy




Town of Hooksett

FINANCE MEMORANDUM
To James Sulfivan, Tewn Council Chairman
From: Christine Soucie, Finance Director( ) /)%MJ

Date; Aprll 20, 2016

Subject;

Requests for your signature as Agent to Expend

The following is a summary of the requests for you to sign as the agent to expend on April 27,

2016:;

Fund

Ambulance Service

Fire Detaiis

Public Recreation lmpact Fees
Pclice Details

Roadway Impact Fees

Sanitary Landfill Capital Reserve

Amount
$ 58,097.31
489.32
100.00
33,275.04
21,295.68
2,988.68

Each request includes copies of involces and other supporting documents, if applicable. As
always, if you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Thanks

FINANCEMeme/To Councl — Transfor Summary

33




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The Hooksett Town Council will be holding a public hearing on Wednesday,

May 11,2016 @ 6:30pm at the Hooksett Town Hall Council Chambers, 35 Main Street,
Hooksett, NH. The purpose of the public hearing is to accept donations to cover the cost
of irrigation/landscape/hardscape material with labor, signage, and ceremony bell valued
at $20,483.36 for the Hooksett Safety Center Memorial Park to the Hooksett Fire-Rescue
Dept. per RSA 31:95-b 11I(a) & RSA 31:95-¢ 11. Questions should be directed to the
Administration Department at 603-485-8472.

35




Staff Report

Cardiac Monitor/Defibrillator donation from CMC

Title:

Date: APrl 27,2016

Background and Discussion of Issues

The New England Heart and Vascular Institute (CMC Hospital) invites and considers requests
to purchase and donate equipment such as cardiac monitor/defibrillators, to improve the critical
care service provided by local EMS agencies such as Hooksett Fire-Rescue. One of our
members, Firefighter/EMT-Paramedic Joe Stalker, felt that this would be a way to improve the
cardiac care that we provide to our residents and patients. FF Stalker stated in his request to
the New England Heart Institute "We, the Hooksett Fire Rescue Department, will need to
replace our cardiac monitor / defibrillators with more updated versions. According to the
Physio-Control company, the LifePak 12s (monitor/defib) we currently have will be obsolete by
September of 2016. Physio-Control will no fonger service these monitors, nor will they produce
any products or parts for them.”

As a result of this need and request, the CMC has generously approved our request and is
purchasing a new LifePak 15 for the Hooksett Fire-Rescue Service. The cost of the equipment
is provided in the quote and the approval letter states their intention. The value of this donation
is greater than $5000.00 and requires a public hearing, as per RSA 31:95-e |l

Recommendation (including suggested mction, if appropriate}

Recommend Council approving and accepting the donation from the New
England Heart and Vascular Institute & Catholic Medical Center for the
LifePac 15 Cardiac Monitor/Defibrillator for use by the Hooksett Fire-Rescue
Department.

Fiscal Impact

This is a donation from the CMC & NE Heart & Vascular Institute. The
equipment comes with a 1-Year warranty.

Prepared by: Acting Fire Chief Dean Jore

Town Administrator Recommendation

Concur.

37




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The Hooksett Town Council will be holding a public hearing on Wednesday,

April 27, 2016 @ 6:30pm at the Hooksett Town Hall Council Chambers, 35 Main Street,
Hooksett, NH. The purpase of the public hearing is to accept a donation of a LifePak 15
Cardiac Monitor/Defibrillator from the New England Heart & Vascular Institute (CMC
Hospital) valued at $28,321.82 to the Hooksett Fire-Rescue Dept. per RSA 31:95-e, 1L
Questions should be directed to the Administration Department at 603-485-8472.

36




Physio-Controi, Inc

11811 Willows Road NE

P.0O. Box 97006

Redmond, WA 98073-9706 U.S.A.
www. physio-control.com

tel 800.442.1142

fax 800.732.0956

To Joe Stalker Quoate Number 00030493
HOOKSETT FD Revision # 1
16 LEGENDS DR
HOOKSETT NH 03106 Created Date 3/2/2016
Sales Consultant  Peter Landry
jstaiker@hooksettﬁre.org FOR Redmond, WA
Terms Afl quotes subject to cradit approval and the
following terms and conditions
NET Temms NET 30
Expiration Date 4/15/2016

LIFEPAK 15 V4

Monitor/Defib, Adaptive Biphasic, Manuat & AED, Color LCD, 100mm

Printer, Noninvasive Pacing, Mefronome, Trending, Sp02, NIBP,

12-Lead ECG, EtC0O2, Carbon Monoxide, Bluetooth

INCLUDED AT NO CHARGE: 2 PAIR QUIK-COMBO ELECTRODES
99577-001957 PER UNIT - 11996-000081, TEST LOAD - 21330-001365, 1.00 | 34,960.00 | -4,544.801 30,415.20 | 30,415.20

IN-SERVICE DVD - 21330-001486, SERVICE MANUAL CD-

26500-003612 {one per order) and SHIP KIT (RC Cable)

41577-000288 INCLUDED. HARD PADDLES, BATTERIES AND

CARRYING CASE NOT INCLUDED.
21330-001176 | LP 15 Lithium-ion Bafiery 5.7 amp hrs 3.00 453.60 -58.97 394,63 1,183.90
11140-000052 | LP15 REDI-CHARGE Adapter Tray 1.00 198.50 -25.81 172.70 172.70
11471-000049 | Rainbow DCI Adt Reusable Sensor, 1/box 1.00 637.00 -82.81 554,19 554,19
11171-000046 | M-LNCS DCI, Adult Reusable Sensor, 1/box 1.00 301.60 -39.13 261.87 261.87
21300-008147 | NIBP HOSE BAYONET-LP15,9FT 1.00 62.00 -8.06 53.94 53.94
11160-000011 | NiBP CUFF BAYONET-REUSEABLE INFANT 1.00 21.00 -2.73 18.27 18.27
11160-000013 | NIBFP CUFF BAYONET-REUSEABLE,CHILD 1.00 24.00 -3.12 20.88 20.88
11160-000047 | NIBP CUFF BAYONET-REUSEABLE LARGE ADULT 1.00 33.00 -4.29 28.71 28.71
11160-000019 : NIBP CUFF BAYONET-REUSEABLE XL ADULT 1.00 48.00 -8.24 41.76 41.76
11220-000028 | Carry case top pouch for use wiLIFEPAK 12 or LIFEPAK 15 1.00 54.60 -7.10 47.50 47.50
11260-0000349 | LIFEPAK 15 Carry case back pouch 1.00 79.20 -10.30 68.90 68.90

LEFEPAK 15 Basic carry case wf right & left pouches

- . . -40. 269, .

11577-000002 INCLUDED AT NO CHARGE: 11577-000001 Shoulder Strap 1.00 309.20 40.20 69.00 268.00
Trade-in T'rade in of LIFEPAK 12 Biphasic - 3 Feature towards the purchase of 1.00 0.00 0.00 | -5,000.00 | -5,000.00
product Lifepak 156

Subtotat

Quote Number: 00030493

UsD 28,136.82

38




Estimated Tax Usp 6.00

Estimated Shipping & Handling USD 185.00

Grand Total USD 28,321.82

Pricing Summary Totals

List Price Total UsD 38,088.31

Total Contract Discounts Amount Ush 0.00
Total Discount USD -4,951.49

Trade In Discounts UsD -5,000.00

Tax + S&H USD 185.00

PHYSIO-CONTROL, iNC. REQUIRES WRITTEN VERIFICATION OF
THIS ORDER. A FURCHASE ORDER I3 REQUIRED ON ALL
ORDERS $10,000 OR GREATER BEFORE APPLICABLE FREIGHT
AND TAXES. THE UNDERSIGNED IS AUTHORIZED TO ACCEPT
THIS ORBER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND PRICES
DENOTED HEREIN

Reference Number PLI07018101/3278

Quote Number: 80030493

GRAND TOTAL FOR THIS QUOTE
usD 28,321.82

CUSTOMER APPROVAL (AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE})

NAME

TIFLE

DATE

39




General Terms for all Products, Services and Subscriptions.

Physio-Conirol, Inc. ("Physio®) accepts Buyer's order expressly condilioned on Buyer's assent fo the lerms set forth in this documend. Buyes's order and
accepfance of any porion of the goeds, services or subscriplions shall confirn Buyer's acceplance of these temms. Unless specified olherwise herein,
these terms constifute the complete agreement between {he padies. Amendments to this documernt shall be in wiiling and no prior or subsequent
acceptance by Selfer of any purchase order, acknowledgment, or olher document from Buyer specifying different andfor addilional terms shall be
effective unless signed by both parlies.

Pricing. Prices do not include freight insurance, freighi forwarding fees, taxes, dulies, import or expert permit fees, or any other similar charge of any
kind applicabla to the goods and services. Sales or use faxes on domestic (USA) deliveries wiil be invoiced in addition 1o the price of the goods and
services unless Physio receives a copy of a valid exemption cedificate prior fo defivery. Discounts may not be combinea wilh other special terms,
discounts, and/er pramolions.

PaymenL Payment for goods and services shall be subject to approval of credil by Physic. Unless otherwise specified by Physio in wiiting, the enlire
payment of an invoice is due thirty (30} days after the invoice dafe for deliveries inthe USA, and sight draft or acceptable (confirmed) imevocable letter of
credit is required for sales pulside the USA.

Minimum Order Quantity. Physio reserves the rightto charge a service fee for any order less than $200.00,

Patent Indemnify. Physio shall indemnify Buyer and hald it harmless from and against afl demands, claims, damages, losses, and expenses, ansing
out of or resulting, from any action by a third party against Buyer that is based on any claim that the services infiinge a United States patent, copyright,
or trademark, or violate a trade secrel or any olher proprietary right of any person of entity, Physio’s indemnification obligafions heteunder wilk be
subject to (i) receiving prompl writlen nolice of the existence of any claim; (if} being able fo, at its oplion, conlrol the defense and sefifement of such
claim ¢provided thal, wihout oblaining the prios writlen consent of Buyer, Physfo wilf enterinto no setilement involving the admission of wrongdeoing), and
(i#i} receiving full coaperation of Buyer in the defense of any claim.

Limitation of Interest. Through lhe purchase of Physio products, services, or subsciiptions, Buyer does nol acquire any inlesest in any looling,
drawings, design information, computer programming, patents or copyrighted or condidentfal infermation related to said products or services, and Buyer
expressly agrees not fo reverse engineer or decompile such products or related software and information.

Delays. Physio wilt not be liable for any loss or damage of any kind due to ifs failure to perform ar defays in #s performance resulling from an event
beyend its feasanable control, including but not imited fo, acts of God, labor disputes, the requirements of any govemmental authority, war, civil unresl,
temorist acts, delays in manuiaciure, oblaining any required license or permit, and Physie inabikly 1o obfain gcods from its usual sources.

Limited Warmranty, Physio wamants its products and services in accordance with the terms of the limiled warranlies located at hitpivininy physio-
control.comyDocuments/. The remedies provided under such wareanfies shafl be Buyer's sole and exclusive remedies. Physio makes na olher
warranties, express or impfied, including, without limilalion, NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTARILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE,
AND N NO EVENT SHALL PHYSIO BE LIABLE FOR INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL OR OTHER DAMAGES.

Compliance with Confidentiality Laws. Both parties acknowledge their respective obligaticns to maintain the security and cenfidentiality of indivicualy
iderdifiable healih information and agree to comply with applicable federal and state health infernmation confidendiality laws.

Compliance with Law. The parties agree to comply with any and all laws, rules, reguiations, ficensing requirements or standards that are now of
heseafter premulgated by any focal, state, and fedaral governmental authority/agency or accreditingfadministeative body that governs or applies fo their
respetlive dulies and obligations hereunder.

Regulalory Requirement for Access fo Information. in Ihe event 42 USC § 1385x{v){1}() is applicable, Physio shall make available o the Secrefary
of the Unifed States Department of Health and Human Services, the Gomptroller General of the Uniled States General Accounting Office, or any of theie
duly aulhorized representalives, a copy of lhese terms, such books, documents and records as are necessagy lo cedify the nalure and extent of the
costs of the progucts and services provided by Physio.

No Debarment. Physio represenls and wamanis that it and its directors, officers, and employees (i} are ot excluded, debarred, or otheiwise inefigible lo
participate in the Federal health care programs as defined in 42 USG § 1320a-7h(f); (it} have nol been convicted of a ciminal offense related to the
provision of healthcare itemns or services; and (jii) are nof under investigation which may result in Physio being exciuded from padicipalion in such
programs.

Choice of Law. The rights and obligations of Physio and Buyer refated [o the purchase and sale of products and services described in this document
shafl be govemed by the laws of the state where Buyer is Jocated. All costs and expenses incumed by the prevailing parly related to enforcement of its
righis under this document, including Teasonable afflomey's fees, shall be reimbursed by the other party.

Additional Terins for Purchase and Sale of Products.

In addition to the General Tenms above, the following terms apply to alk purchases of producis from Physéo:

Delivery. Unfess otherwise specified by Physio in wiiting, delivery shall be FOB Physio poind of shipment and titte and risk of ioss shail pass to Buyer at
that poird. Partial deliveries may be made and parlial invoices shall be permited and shall become due in accordance with the payment terms. In the
absence of shipping instructions from Buyer, Physio will obtain fransportation on Buyer's behaif and for Buyer's accounf. Defivery dales are
approximate. Freight is pre-paid and added lo Buyer's invoice. Producls are subject to availability.

Inspections and Returns. Within 30 days of receipt of a shipment, Buyer shali nolify Physio of any claim for product damage or nonconformity. Physio,
al its sale oplion and discretion, may repair of replace a product to bring it into conformily. Refum of any product shalk be govemed by the Retumed
Product Policy located at bitp#www physio-conteol.com/Documents/.  Payment of Physio’s invoice Is nol conlingent on immediate correction of
neaconfomities.

No Resale. Buyer agrees that products purchased hereunder will not be resofd fo third parties and will not be reshipped to any persons or places
prohibited by the laws of the United Stales of America

Quote Number: 00030493

40




14 Bell Ave,

Hooksett, NH 03106-1036
Res: 603-669-2674

Cell: 603-396-5168

email: rondens@comcast.net

April 22, 2016

Hooksett Town Council
Hooksett, New Hampshire 03106
Re: Firebird Motel
10 Bell Ave., Hooksett, NH
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

We, the undersigned, are abutters and/or neighbors residing and/or working in the area
of the above captioned motel.

Since attending the Neighborhood Waich program in 2015, we have noticed an up-tick/
proliferation of activity in the coming & going of clienis at the Firebird. To our dis-like,
there seems 1o be a lack of “preventive maintenance” on management's part that might
otherwise preclude a number of incidents, now increasing in intensity and frequency.

While the Police Department should be commended for its vigilance in attempting to
keep some measure of safety in & around our neighborhood, and we so appreciate its
untiring efforts, we remain reactive to what is transpiring at that address, rather than
being pro-active in deterring malicious behavior.

We will appreciate an open discussion at the town council regarding steps that can be
initiated to regain our appreciation of living in this section of Hooksett.

; - L d < é‘—u‘p.g L‘I’ L/ﬁ&g_i-ﬂj?’" .
(6(2‘@‘“58% s (s C%f forev § Csuvere heaenaneg Qrp
Pt ——%‘pé’aﬁ%wf} 5’.?&'///2&&} ,;;f/ iiff Lol 5 M/é /«E’Jﬁ%/ 7%)@/24‘}— !

AN T Caddice Cole. § 2T Siewns Ave. Heotsert |
Y i ﬁ"l,.,\ , ‘F\’@y Ay, j{n‘ ZLAWLA '—\', 3?,\)1 L e I*Lﬁ:\,{,e,,q:t*/ I

w
[ & £ & K ( ord T LIl A A

\.iﬂg{f«‘ '.;L::’;‘ i..- 5. s
Lo et > 16 BELL INE, HOOESETT

j;ﬂM LY BELC AVE. . PAL FRATz DG &@mﬂ(zi&l(g

ottt e B : i o 41




1% 7 USSoN (ﬁv :

A5 S LARERTSR

Lgwyar Markelng Gorporate Counsel Law Siedets

Fluglow Cuseizw  New Hampahire  MH Supreme Ct .
GITY OF MANCHESTER SCHOOL DISTRIGT v, GITY OF MANCHESTER

CITY OF MANCIHESTER SCHOOL DISTRICT v. CITY
OF MANCHESTER

T pnt

Supreme Court of Neiw Hampshire.

CITY OF MANCHESTER SCHOOL DIS?TRI CT and another v. CITY OF
MANCHESTER.

No. 2003-303-

Decided: March 15, 2004
wadleigh, Starr & Peters, P.L.L.C., of Manchester (Dean B. Eggert and Jennifer L. Murphy on the bief, and
M. Eggert orally), for the plaintifis. Thomas T, Amold, HI, dcputy eity solicitor, of Manchester, on thebrief and
oraily, for the defendant.
in this declaratory judgment action, the defendant, City of Manchester (city), appeals an order of the Superior
Court (Mangones, J.) granting summary judgnient in favor of the plaintiffs, Manchester School District and
School Administeative Unit # 37 (collectively, the sehool djs't:.rict). The court roled that the cily acted withoul
authority when, by charter samendment, it merged the schaol district with the municipal corporation therehy
making the school distriet a city depariment.  See RSAch. i49-B(2003). Weaffirm.

The trial court found the follewing facts.  In December 199§, the school district filed a petition for declaratory
judgment, seeldng a determination that it was nota deparhi)ient of city governiment.  The Superior Court {§.
Nadeay, C.J.) rded that because the school district fanctions as 2 “substantiafly independent goveremental
entity,” itwas nata eity department. :

‘The hoard of mayor and akdermen then proposed an amend_rinenttn the ity charter.  The effeet of the
amendmient was o merge the school district with the munic.ipul corporation and make ita city department.

The amendment also gave the mayor and aldermen authm-it} to develop procedures for the administration of the
school department budgel.  On November 6, 2001, Manchv:su:r voters approved the charter amendment.

1n response, the schoal district filed a second petition for de;:lammryjudgmenf, secking a declaration that the
charier amendment was unlawful.  Both parties filed mnlicins for summary judgment.  The Trial Court
(Mangones, J.) granied the school district's motion for summary judgment and conctuded that “a specific
Fegislative act mustbe in effect for a City to create a school department in derogation of general law on the
issue.” This appeal followed. ;

Tn reviewing the trial coust's grant of summiry judgment, we consider the affidavits and other evidence, and
all properly drawn inferenees in the light most favorable to the non-moving party. Big league Entm'tv. Brox
ndus., 140 N.H. 480, 482, 821 A.2d 1054 (2003). 1f our r:e\riew of that evidence discloses no genuine issue of
materia) fact, and {fthe maving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law, we will affirm the grant of
summary judgment. Id, We review the trial court’s application of the }aw to the facts de novo. Td.

‘The sole issue for our review is whether the city had the authority to adopt a charier amendment that menges
the schoot district with the municipal corporation, thus maj(i\:g the school district a city deparbment. In
deriding this issue, we consider our constitution, the home rule statutes and stalutes governing the eperation of
school distriets.

Under our constitution, the legisiature has plenary contrel over municipalities. See Statev. Goffstown, 100
ML 131, 132, 121 And g1y (1956).  Thus, “[mwnicipatities] have only the powers which tha Slate grants lo
them.” . {quotation omitted). The legislature has authorized municipalities to adopt chatters, which
transfer power from the legistatuse and invest it in the governing body of the municipality. Sce13 P, Loughlin,
New Hampshire Practice, Local Government Law § 31, atig (1995).

In New Hampshire, prior to 1966, municipal chartess “could ba amended ar repealed at the discretion of the
Fepislature.” 1§ 33,at2z. In k9606, Part], Article 39, the home rule wmendment, was added to e New
Hampshire Constiution. I, § 33, at=3. Ttprovides:

JusiceMal

Font size: 8 LA Resal |

Nowslefles

Y
I

o )
Cl
-

FindLaw Career Center

Altomey
Coiporale Counsel
Acadamic
“Judicial Glerk
‘Summer Assocate
Intem .
Law Libraian v

Jobs] Posta Job | View More labs

View More

Injury Giaim?
Find oul hov much your
ant could be worll

Need a New Take?
Read FindLaw's Supreme Gourt Blog
Te Get the Freshasi Updatas Now!

Blegrinalasw comizupreme, et

Car Accldent Injury?

You may qualfy for compensatian.
Find OUl Today!
cCiniminigry . om

42




Nu Laow changing the charter or form of government of a pa";ﬁcularcily or town shakl be enacted by the
Jegislature except 1o become effective upen the approval of i vaters of such eity or town upon a referendum to

be provided for in said kuw.

The tegislature may by geaerul kaw anthorize cities and tos ms to adapt or amend their charlecs or forms of
goveramend it auy way which is not in confliet with generdi law, pruvidet that such charters or amendments
shall bevone effective only upen the approval #f tha voters of euch such city or town on & referendaim. )

N.H. CONSLLpt 1, art. 30.

The fivst pavagraph of the amendment “prevents the legist ‘um from ultening e form of municipal governmeny,
as provided in any nnicipal charter withant n referendnmivote.”  Loughlin, supra § 33, at23. “The second
paragraph of Article 3g is not scHf-executing and did not become operative until the enactment of legislation
setting out the methad of exercising such home rule pawen' 1d. § 63, at4B. The poweravailableto

manicipatities vnder the second paragraph of Atticle 30 hz\f been described as limited.  Seeid. In stazk
contrzst o the “unlimited legistative powers thal some Oﬂlt‘ll states have granted to munieipalitics,” the power
available to eities and towns under New Hampshire's heme rule amendment “is limited W the specified

processes by which their eharlers or forms of government a‘m adopted or amenden.” 3d.

In 1979, the legislature cnacted legislation to implementP::;rt I, Article30. 1d.§ 34,at24. Thecurrent
versions of the home rule statutes were adopted in 1091, Ed § 35, at26, Together, these three statutes, RSA
chapters 49-B, 49-C and 4¢-1}, conslitule a detailed, comprjehensivc scheme fur the establishment and
operation of local government, RSA chapter 49-B gives rﬁunicipaliﬁes explicit authority te choose a form of
government. Their choices, however, are limited. RSA 49—]3 2, 11J (2003) limils a city's choice to the forms of
government outlined in RSA chapter49-C. See RSA 49- {88 (2003) {explaining mayor-aldermen and council-
managerplans). Eikewise, RSA 49-B:2, 1 (2003) fimits & town's choice to the forms of government outlined
in RSA chapter 49-D,  See RSA 49-D:2,:3 (2003 & Supp. 2003] (explaining twwn council-town manager plas
and optional types of legislative bedies),  Similarly, the atruclure of the form of government selected is dictaled

by RSA chapters 49-Cand 49-D.

RSA chapter 49-Bis the stasting point for the formation ofa locat government. 1t “provides the statutory
frainework through which cities and towns may amend ﬂmr actual forms of government, and grants them the
powar necessaty to carsy out such changes.”  Loughlin, spp:a § 134, at2q. RSA 40-B: (2003) states:

1t is the purpase of this chapler to iinplement the home ru]épowem recogaized by article 39, part first, of the
constitution of the stale of New Hampshire, To thatend, EiJm general court hereby provides a vehicle whereby a
municipality may adopt a form of governmcnt that best udan.sscs local needs.  Atthezame time; however, the
general court recognizes a aeed ko requize uniform prDLCduIES and peactices when there is & comvesponding state
interest. 'Therefore, this chapier is intended only 10 pn:wule a procedural framework by which a city ortown
may amend its actual form of government.  Mething in 1hi5 ¢hapter shall be vonstrued to create any power in,
or confer any power upon, any city or town be:.'(mdﬁlal.nebessary to carry out the amendment of a charter or
form of government as sel forth in liis chapler.  The geneml luws of Liis state shall remain in full force and

cffect, and they shail be construed to be consistent with th

effectuation of this chapter's staled purpose.  Accordingly,

towns and cities to adopt, amend, or revise a numicipal ck

5 chapter 1o the greatest éxtent possible in the
this chapter shall be sirictly interpreted to allow
arter relative to their form of government so long as

the resulting charter is neither in eonflict with ner inconsistent with the general laws or the constitation of this
state.

RSA chapter 49-B then sets forth exceptionally detailed requirements for the adaption, amendment and revision
of churters.  To Legin theprocess ol adopting a charter, thie manicipalily must establish a charter commission
comprised of nine clecled members.  RSA 44-B13,:4 (Suppl.aoo;;), ‘The commission is required to hold a publie
meeting within fourteen days of its own organizational meeling. RSA 49-Bid. ‘The comrmission must issuea
preliminary report within 180 days of its establishment anyd a final report within 225 days. 1d. Thestatute
also presetibes the procedure by which the charter, charter amendment or revision is submitted to the voters.

RSA 40-B:6 (2003),

Here, the municipal charter denominates Manchesier as a eity. ‘Therefore, the charter must adhere to the
framework set forth in RSA chapler 45-C.  SceRSA 49-8{2:, T, R84 chapler 49-C permits z cily lo select
either the mayor-hoard of aldermen plan or the city comsc:ll—n1nnagcr plax as a form of government. RSA 49-
:8.  Manchester has opted for the mayor-board of aldermen form of government.  RSA chapter 49-Csels
forth an exhaustive blueprint for this forny of government.

The statute provides that the mayor, who is “the chief adrr;inisu-aﬁw officer and the head of the adminisrative
branch of the city government,” must be selected from the :gily-al-large. RE8A 49-C:8,116 (2003).  Themayoris
required to “devole full time 10 mayoral duties” and “shall ioreside” over mectings of the aldermen. R8A 49-
Ceat,:12 (2003),  Additional powers and dufics of the ma:yor are detailed in RSA 49-Cid.

B

The statute finther states that the municipal charter muost i;_)rovid(: for the appeintment of olficers, as well as the
eslablishnent of depastments, divisions and bureaus., Specifically, mnder RSA 49-C:20 (2008):
4

i
The clvarier shall prindde for the appoininent of a city clexi—k, a treasuier, 01 or MOLe ASSCSSOTE, a fise chiel, 2
police chief, a health officer, a city solicitor, a general assistance adminiswator, and such other officers as may
be necessary to administer all depavtments which the elec:t'ed body and the charter shall establish,

Moregver, with respect to deparirnents, RSA 49-Ci21 (20053) provides:

43




The city ghall have departments, divisions, and hivaus a5

1ay he established by the charier ot ag the elected

Isudy may establish by ordinance.  Ttshali be the duty of thy first chief administrative officer, under the
pravisions af the charter to draft and submit fo he elected bfdy within g months after assuming office, an
ordinance consistenl with the charter which pravides for th;e division of the administratve service of the city
iuto deparbments, divisions and bureous and defines the fuy ctions and duties uf each.

Tn this ense, the city relies primanily upon RSA 49-Ciat fo aggue thatithas “elear authority” 10 wansfirm the

pehool district into w cily departmenl.  We disagree.

We interpret legislative intent from the slatule as written

nd, therefore, we will not consider what the

legistature might have said or add words that the legislatuse did not include. JYR Colebrook v. Town of
Colebrook, 149 N.H. 767, 770, 829 A.2d 1089 (2003).  When eonstruing a statute, We firat evamine the

language foundin the statute. Id. “Although we give undefined language fts plain and ovdinary meaning, we
must keep in mind the intent of the legislation, which is da*érminedby examining the construction af the:
satate as a whole, and not simply by examining isolated wbrds and phrases found therein.” k. {quotation
omitted).  We construe slalulogy provisions in a manner iﬂf‘at is cansistent with the spirit and objeetives of the

legislotion as a whole. Id. aty70-71, 829 A.2d 1089,

Our task is to construe the scope of RSA 49-Ciz1. The city] Enrguos, and we agree, that we must look at RSA 49~
B:1 toaccomplish this task.  The overarching purpose of RSA chapter 49-B is to provide “the statutory
franework through which vilies and lowns may amend their actual forms of government, and grant] ]them the
pawer necessary 1o carry out such changes.” Loughfin, spa § 34, 2t24.  RSA chapless 45-C and 40-D wark
in conjunction with RSA chapter 49-B by providing = limilgd list of forms of government that are available to

municipalities. See RSA 49-C:B; RSA 49-D:2,:3.  Thus,

RSA 49-B:1 provides a framework for construing not

only RSA chapter 49-B, bul also RSA chaplers 49-Cand 49, D3, Therefare, we consider RSA 49-BrLin
determining the seope of authority granted to municipalities by RSA 46-C:21.

Thelegislalive direchve in RSA, 4¢-B:1 provides that "ihis ¢

hapter shall be sirietly interpreted to ullow towns

and cities 1o adopt, amend, or revise A municipal charter relative to their form of government so lang as the

resulting chuer is neither in conflict with nor inconsistent with the general laws or the constitution of this

state.” In light of this legislative directive, we have recognjzed that RSA ehapler 49-B "provides 1he stahutory
framewerk through which cities and towns may amend their actunl forms of government, and grants them the
power necessary to ramy out such changes.” Town of Hodkseit v. Baines, 148 NH. 623, 628, 813 Azd 474
(2002) (quotation omitied). We have, kowever, cautioned that “the constitutional authority supporting RSA
chapler 49-B in no way provides or suggests that the towns, cities or other subdivisions of this State should

have the right to exercise supreme legislative authorily.” T,
munitipality exceeds the authority granted by RSA chapter

fl. (quotation omitted}. In octher wards, when a
49-, it intrudes into the legislalive authority of the

peneval conrt. Seeid. Wehave thus held that "RSA chap:ier 45-B grmnis a municipality only the power

necessary to amend its form of government.” 1d. at 62y, 8

3 A.2d q74.

Consistent with these limitations, we have held that RSA ¢ ;mpler 49-B permits a municipality with a city
eouncil-city manager form of government to adopt a pmces.:s of citizen initative and referendom. Handiman v,

City of Lebanon, 122 N.H. 477, 482-83, 446 A.2d 1358 (19

:2). Monetheloss, we noted that, if adopted, a

citizan initative and referendum process could not “intrude " into mutters reserved for the city couneil, and eould
not contravene the general laws or the constitution.  Id. all483, 446 A.ad 1158,

On the othier hand, we have held that o town does not havg the aclhority to enact a rent control ordinance,

Girard v. Town of Allenstown, 121 N H. 268, 271-73, 428 A.2d 488 (1981) (quolation and brackets omitted).

We stated that “lowas enly have such powers as are expressly granted to them by the legislature and such as are

necussarily implied or incidental therete.” 1d. at 271, 428
interpret RSA chapier 49-B “broadly ard literally.™ Id. at »

t:\.2d488 {quotation omitted). Wealso declined to
jrz, 428 A.2d 488. Instead, we held thatthe statule

“was intended only lo provide a statutory framework by which the cities and towns may amend their actual form

of povernment and that RSA 49-B:8 . grants ondy the powe,
79, 428 A.2d 488.

Morc recently, we held that RSA chapter 49-B did not auth

I necessary o carry out such changes.”  Id. at272-

nrize the city of Manchester to abter its retirement

systern by amending thecity charter. Appeal of Barry, 143 NUH. 161, 165-66, 720 A.2d 577 (1998).  In Barry,
the retirement board argued that *Part |, Atticle 39 of the New Hampshire Constitution and RSA chapter 49-B

authorize{d] the city {0 amend the retivement system beeany

¢ it is part of the city charter, its form of

government.” 1d. at164, 720 A.2d 977, We squarely rej
was purl of its form of government and stated that “RSA 49
municipality may choose, rather than grants a municipaki
165, 720 A.2d 977,

Finally, in Paines, 48 N.H. at 620, $12 A.2d 474, we held
amend its charter to impose term limits on city officials.
because fornier KA 4¢-Bi2, 1V antherized muaicipalities &
to amend its charter te impose term limits.  Id. at 620-30,

we said that “RSA chapter 49-B granls a municipality only
government.” Id. at62g, 813 A.ad 474,

In sum, our cases demonstade that RSA chapter 49-B auth;
sovernment. See Harriman, 122 NLH. al 482-83, 446 A2

cted the argument that the city's retirement systern
12 clearty limits the forms of government a
runbridled authariy to amend its charter.” Id at

:th ak RSA chapler 40-B did not autharize a town to
We specifically vejected the town's argument that

:jc regulate “terms of affice,” the iown was authorized
:353 A.ad474. Inlinewith our previous holdings,
the power necessury o amend its form of

l:)l‘iZCS municipalities to amend fheir actual forns of
(=1 1158. Ourcases also desonstraie hat RSA

chapler 46-B does not provide nunicipalides with the auﬂu}ril)—' to enact rent control ardinances, amend their

velirement systems or impose term limits on elected officials bucasse, in doing so, municipatities impermissibly

44




intrade indo the legislative authority of the general couel.
a3 ML at165, 720 A.2d 077; Bainca, 148 M.H, 01629-3
ammdedd i1s charter to make he schod districtinto a city
government and, therefore, itacted outside of the scope of

Muteover, there: ix a comprehensive statutory scheme that

See: Girand, 121 N.H. at 27173, 424 Azd JBY; Bany,
, 81 A.ud 474, In the presenlvase, when ihecity
cpartment, {tdid notamend i actoal form of
utherity granted to it by RSA chapler 49-B.

videnees o legiglative intent not to permil

munictpaiities 1o exerclve broad control over i establishnent, pmvers and fanctioning of school distriets.
School distets exist as separale enfifies hecanse the legistature has determined hatall school “disteiets Jepally

organized shall be corporations, with power to sue and be

wed, 1 botd and dispose of real and personal

properey for the use of the schools thereln, and to make nedrssasy enndracts in relabion theretn,” REA 194:2
{1599). Schaol dishrirls have extensive powers, including the power 1o raise meney, procure lagnd, build
schoothouses, ahtain insuranee, purchase vehicles and pay debls. R3A 194:3 (1999).  In addition, the

legislative scheme ineludes a list of superintendent servic
well as u list of procedures that school districts must folly
Supp.2003).  Thelegislature has also ereated a state boa
supervise and direct the public schools in the State. RSA
suggests that, at leastwith respect o the struelure and fun
intend to whally ahulicate its supervisory control to munic
this legislatve intent ta adopt the city’s argument that the
the autherity to merge a school distict with the manicipal
Cf. Baines, 148 N.H. al 631, 813 A.2d 474 {explaining th
statutory seheme” to allew a mnnieipality to impose term }

; that must be provided by eacl: school district, as
when adopting a budget. RSA 194-Ciq,:9 (1090 &
d of education that lias the authorily to marage,
?86:5 {(199g). This comprehensive statutory scheme
%Limling of school distiicts, the fepislature did not
palities.  Accordingly, it would be incensistent with
fugis!:llure intended 1o provide municipalities with
i:urpomlion by simply amending the city charter.

it it “woutd be repugnant to the implied intent of the
mits where the “legisluture has created a

comprehensive stahrtory seheme governing clections and } fas defined the scape of qualifications necessary to

cbluin elected offiee”).

RSA 49-C:20 provides additional evidence of the legislature's intent xot t¢ permit rnunicipatities to exercise

broad control over schoel districts. The statute speciﬁcali:_yr states that a charter “shalk provide for” the

appointment of numerous officers, including a city clerk, 4 ;treasu:er, an assessor, a fire chief and a police chief.
The statule does not give the city the authority 1o appoint the superintendent of a scheol district.  Rather, the

legislature has expressty given this authority 1o the local s

The absence of any reference to municipzl authority over 5|
of a comprehensive skatatory schere for school distisets i
legislature intended te cede authority to municipalities w1
without explicit kegistadve approval.

To suminarize, owr tases have narrowly construed the scof
chupter 45-B in light of the legislative directive that it be st
as hroadiy as the city suggesis would run afoul of our prevy

chaol board.  Ser RSA 164-C15, 1(a) (1969).

thoot distriets in RSA chapler 49-C, and the existence
. RSA chapter 194, raises considerable doubl that the
r:lerge school districts with the eity government

)e of authority conferred upon municipalities by RSA
fieflyinterpreted.  To construe the home rule statutes
ous decisions holding that RSA chapter 49-B only

provides municipalities with the statutory frameweorlk throligh which they ean ¢heose and amend their farm of

povernment.  See Baines, 148 N.H. a1 628, 813 A2d 474
that fhe tawns, cities or other subdivisions of this State sh
authority.” 1d. (quotation omitted). We thus conclude )
authority to merge the school districtwith the munieipal o

Finally, the city points to Nashua, Portsmouth and Roche
school districts that are city departments.  As the trial co
and Rochester school departiments were ereated by special
(Mashua); Iaws 1905, ch. 212 (Portsmeuth); Laws 189,
thatwhen a musicipality seeks to transform the school di
approvul, In light of this histery, we conelude that in ord
corporation and make the school distict a city deparimen

Recause tegislative uithority had not been abtained for th

“R8A chapter 49-B in no way provides or sugeests
Buld have the xight to exercise supreme legislative
:at the home mile statutes do nol give the city the
grpomn'nn.

Ster ax examples of axnicipalities that have ceealed
xfrt correctly noted, however, the Nashua, Portsmouth
]egislaﬁm actk  Seelaws 1923, ¢h, =227:2

f. ch, 241:4 (Rochester). Ifanything, this susgests
trict inty a city department, it must obtain legislative
ur o mnerge the school district with the municipal

. the city is required to oblain legislative authority.

:cily 1o amend its charter to make the school disticta

city department, we hold Uiat the trial court comectly detes

nined that the school district was entitled to

Judgment as a matter of law.
Affiemed.
PUGGAN, J.

BRODERICK, C.J., and NADEAU and DALIANIS, JJ., ¢g

RESEARGH THE LAW Caseo & Goadog / Cpin)
MANAGE YOUR PRAGTICE i.aw Techaology / Low|
MANAGE YOUR CAREER Lugal Cureer Job Sexy
NEWS AND COMMENTARY  legal News Headline

GET LEGAL FORMS Legat Furms for Your |

ncarred.

.‘:h { Ontine CLE/Law Swduni Rescuices

\aciice

ABOUT US Company History f Mejlu Redations J Contact Us / Privacy f Adventisng ¢ Jobs

FIND DS ON

Copyrighl © 2015 Findlaw, a Thomsen Rewlers business. AR §:1ls reserved.

on Summarios / Samplo Businoss Centracis 7 Rosparch An Alfomay of Law Firm

ractice Management/ Law Firm Rarketng Sarvices / Corporate Gaunsel Cenlor

fl taw Commenlary f Featizeed Documents  Nesesletters { Blegs FRSS Feeds

45




Staff Report

. Discussion of Newsletter in Tax Bill
Title:

Date: May 11, 2016

Background and Discussion of Issues

It has been the practice to place Town newsletters in with the tax bill. In order
to allow this practice for the May 2016 tax bill, Council will need to pass a
motion to approve.

Recommendation (including suggested motion, if appropriate)

Motion to allow the Town newsletter to be inserted along with the May 2016
tax bill.

Fiscal Impact

It typically costs $600 to print and insert the newsletter in with the tax bill.

Katie Ambrose, Project Coordinator
Prepared by:

Town Administrator Recommendation

Concur




f& May 2016

TOWN OF HOOKSETT NEWSLETTER

JOIN THE SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
PLANNING COMMISSION!

The Planning Board is looking for two volunteers to
serve as Hooksett representatives to the Southern
New Hampshire Planning Commission (SNHPC).
For more information, please contact Community
Development at (603) 268-0279 or email
jduffy@hooksett.org.

What is the SNHPC?

The SNHPC region includes the City of Manchester
& the towns of Auburn, Bedford, Candia, Chester,
Deerfield, Derry, Francestown, Goffstown,
Hooksett, Londonderry, New Boston, Raymond,
Weare & Windham. Executive Order Number
Fifteen, issued by former Governor Peterson,
delineated the SNHPC region. The main functions
of the SNHPC are to increase communication;
promote intergovernmental cooperation &
coordination between planning boards & local
officials; promote coordinated development of the
region; prepare & adopt regional plans, including
policies and strategies for the region; & perform
other acts or functions as deemed appropriate to
fulfill its duties.

Why was the SNHPC established?

In the early 1960s, representatives from
Manchester, Auburn, Bedford, Goffstown, Hooksett
& Londonderry recognized the need for, & the
value of, comprehensive transportation & land use
planning. That cooperative venture, assisted by the
state & federal governments, led to the formal
organization of the SNHPC in August, 1966 under
the provisions of NH RSA, Chapter 36, as a means
of establishing an on-going planning process. Since
that time, additional communities have joined the
Commission.

Who governs the Commission?

A board of 46 local representatives, called the
Board of Commissioners governs the SNHPC. The
Commissioners are appointed by the governing
bodies of the member municipalities upon the
recommendation of their respective planning
boards, as outlined in RSA 36:46. An Executive
Committee, consisting of 15 members, is elected
from the membership of the full Board to provide
overall policy direction and guidance, & to
administer the financial and operational affairs. An
Executive Director is appointed by the Commission
to manage and supervise the day-to-day operations
and staff under the general direction provided by the
Executive Committee & the Board of
Commissioners.

ALARM PERMITS
The Hooksett Police Department would like to
remind all residents & business owners about the
alarm permit ordinance #00-27 that went into effect
July 1, 2014. Alarm permits need to be renewed
annually in the month of December. Residents who
have current alarm systems but have not applied for
a permit are encouraged to do so. An initial one-
time fee of $25 will be charged. The ordinance is
designed so alarm owners ensure that their alarms
are working and serviced properly and officers are
not tied up at false alarms for extended periods of
time. Permits are available at the Police Department
or at www.hooksettpolice.com. Thank you for your
cooperation.

HOOKSETT OLD HOME DAY 2016
Hooksett Old Home Day is September 17™,
For further information visit:
www.hooksettoldhomeday.org.

48




DRUG COLLECTION DROP BOX
'The Hooksett Police Department wishes to remind
all residents that the department has a Drug
Collection Drop Box located in the front lobby of
the James H. Oliver Safety Center located at 15
Legends Drive. The Drug Collection Box provides
residents with a safe and environmentally
responsible way to dispose of unwanted, unused or
expired medication, including controlled
substances.

The Drug Collection Box is inftended to reduce the
amount of unneeded medicine in residents’ homes
and decrease prescription drug abuse, which has
soared in recent years, especially among tecnagers.
More than 70 percent of teenagers say it is easy to
get prescription drugs from their parents’ medicine
cabinets, according to a 2014 Partnership for Drug-
Free Kids study.

The Drug Collection Box will also help to prevent
the contamination of local landfills and water
supplies from unused medication.

The Hooksett Police Department is proud to have
partnered with CVS/pharmacy to obtain the Drug
Collection Box to help Hooksett residents reduce
the amount of unneeded medicine in our
community.

The Drug Collection Box is accessible to the public
24 hours a day, 7 days a week. There are no
questions asked and no forms to fill out. You
simply drop the medications in the Collection Box.
Please consider using the Drug Collection Box to
dispose of unwanted, unused or expired medication,
including controlled substances.

NEW HERITAGE COMMISSION
MERCHANDISE

New to the Heritage Commission merchandise line
is an 11” x 14” parchment-colored 1892 map of
Hooksett. It locates houses (with family names),
schools & some businesses. Suitable for framing &
only $10. Available in the Town Clerk’s Office or
Robie’s Country Store. All proceeds benefit the
work of the commission.

May 2016

LIBRARY NEWS

New Discount Passes for Area Attractions

Save money when you visit the New England
Aquarium, Boston Children’s Museum, Squam
Lake Science Center, Charmingfare Farm,
Canterbury Shaker Village and 12 other area
attractions, by borrowing the Library’s museum
passes. Discounts range from 50% off to FREE
admission! New discount passes to the U.S.S.
Constitution Museum and the Merrimack Repertory
Theatre have been added to the collection. Visit
www.hooksettlibrary.org for more details and to
reserve your passes foday!

Classes, Social Groups & Cultural Events

Learn how to use your computer, tablet or
smartphone by attending weekly technology classes.
Attend group meetings for digital photography,
painting, knitting, Mah Jongg, writer’s, or Zumba!
Join community members at cultural events such as
author visits, historical talks, humanities
presentations and more. Your Library provides
educational and entertainment opportunities for
community members of all ages. Check us out
online at www.hooksettlibrary.org to learn what we
offer for you.

Over 30.000 eBooks., eAudiobooks & eMagazines

The library’s downloadable collection continues to
grow and there are popular titles for people of all
ages to borrow. Enjoy listening to and reading
books by best-selling authors, and perusing popular
magazines like Good Housekeeping, Eating Well,
Discover, Newsweek and over 60 other choices!
Please visit www.hooksettlibrary.org for more
information, and speak to a library staff member for
assistance using the services with your smart phone,
tablet, laptop or other electronic device.

49




Staff Report

Title: Boston Post Cane Award

Date: May 11,2016

Background and Discussion of Issues

The Boston Post Cane recipient, Virginia Kalariotes, sadly passed away on
March 27th. To our knowledge, the next recipient should be Sophie Dlugosz.
She just recently celebrated her 99th birthday as she was born on April 23,
1917. Sophie moved to Hooksett after marrying her husband and Hooksett
native Rudolph, and together they operated R.J. Dlugosz Oil Company. They
raised two children in town, and although she currently resides in Manchester
she still owns their family home in Hooksett's district 4. Sophie belonged fo
the Hooksett Women's Club, the Hooksett-ites and the Grange. Her award
ceremony would need to be held during the daytime at her residence in
Manchester in the coming weeks.

Recommendation {including suggested motion, if appropriate)

To award the Boston Post Cane to Sophie Dlugosz, and to present the award
at her residence.

Fiscal Iimpact

N/A

Katie Ambrose, Project Coordinator
Prepared by:

Town Administrator Recommendation

Concur




